ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 20, 2006
8:52 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therri aul t

Senator Hollis French

Senator G etchen GQuess

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 316
“"An Act anending the Alaska Stranded Gas Devel opnment Act to
elimnate the opportunity for judicial review of the findings
and determ nation of the comm ssioner of revenue on which are
based | egislative review for a proposed contract for paynents in
lieu of taxes and for the other purposes described in that Act;
and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 313
"An Act relating to scheduling Salvia divinorum as a controlled
subst ance. "

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BI LL NO. 48

"An Act relating to reconmending or refusing psychotropic drugs

or certain types of evaluations or treatnments for children.”
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 446(JUD)
"An Act relating to the anmpbunt of a civil penalty for an
unlawful act or practice in the conduct of trade or comrerce
and elimnating mandatory continuances in these matters after
i ssuance of an injunction.™

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 20, 2006



BILL: SB 316
SHORT TITLE: COURT REVI EW OF STRANDED GAS DECI S| ON
SPONSOR(s): JUDI Cl ARY

04/ 13/ 06 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 13/ 06 (S) JUD

04/ 19/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 19/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 19/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 20/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Larry Ostrovsky, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral

O 1 and Gas Section

Depart nment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 316

Steve Porter, Deputy Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding SB 316

Lori Backes, Executive Director

All Al aska Alliance

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 316

Bill Wal ker, General Counse

Al aska Gasline Port Authority

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 316

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:52:09 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Charlie Huggins, Getchen Guess, and Chair Ral ph
Seeki ns.

SB 316- COURT REVI EW OF STRANDED GAS DECI S| ON

8:52:53 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 20, 2006



CHAI R RALPH SEEKI NS announced SB 316 to be up for consideration.

LARRY OSTROVSKY, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral, QI and Gas

Departnment of Law (DOL) and STEVE PORTER, Deputy Conmm ssioner,
Department of Revenue (DOR) introduced thenselves for the
record.

8:54:16 AM
Senator CGene Therriault joined the neeting.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. GOstrovsky to explain what a “final
agency deci sion under this chapter” neans.

MR. OSTROVSKY replied “chapter” refers to Chapter 82, which is
the Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act (SGDA). Once the comm ssioner
goes through the process set out in the SGDA he issues a “final
finding” and those words are the trigger for an appeal.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked M. Ostrovsky whether it is the final agency
decision is what is appeal abl e.

MR. OSTROVSKY said yes because courts like to deal with fina
deci si ons.

Chair Seekins asked himto explain the process of an appeal.
8:56: 25 AM

MR. OSTROVSKY said soneone mght ask for reconsideration of a
decision. Usually they would present facts and circunstances
that the commi ssioner hadn’t considered. Normally an appeal is
filed with the superior court and superior court would then
order the agency record assenbled. The court would order
briefing. After that it depends on the type of appeal.

8:58:40 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS asked the tinmefrane it nornmally takes.

MR. OSTROVSKY replied in his experience where there is a conpl ex
issue with a large record supporting it, it could take six
months to a year. The Suprenme Court process would take another
year and so it would be roughly two years.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked whether the record would be catalogued
during the commi ssioner’s deci sion-maki ng process.

MR. OSTROVSKY said yes. The decision is usually extensive and

woul d conprise of a couple hundred pages. It would generally be
a distillation of perhaps 1,500 pages. Under state |law the court

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 20, 2006



has to be able to understand the reason for an agency decision
Wen the law calls for a best interest finding, a comm ssioner
cannot sinply state that he finds it in the best interest.

MR. PORTER agreed that the commssioner’s finding would be a
t hor ough anal ysis of the contract and many reports.

9:02:32 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS referred to the SGDA and asked what notivated the
bill to come down. Currently the final agency decision would go

de facto wth the contract to the governor and would be
forwarded to the Legislature along with the contract if the
governor chose to do so. He asked the responsibility of the
Legi sl ature.

MR. OSTROVSKY advised it was to look at the contract, the
finding, and all docunents supporting the finding and deliberate
with experts. The Legislature would look at all the data to
verify that the comm ssioner’s finding that the contract is in
the best interest of the state.

MR. PORTER said during the prelimnary finding the Legislature
has a responsibility to review the contract and a prelimnary
finding and to coment to the conm ssioner.

MR. PORTER based on the review the comm ssioner will review al
the comrents, determ ne whether the contract needed amendi ng and
if so, renegotiate the anmendnents with the applicant. Based on
that he will issue a new and final finding and submit a new
contract to the Legislature for ratification. Wthout the fina
aut horization from the Legislature, the governor could not sign
t he contract.

9:06: 43 AM
MR. OSTROVSKY added if after the review by |egislative budget
and audit, if the comm ssioner changes the contract he nust

renegoti ate and secure agreenment under AS 43.82.430(b).

CHAIR SEEKINS said the final decision on whether the contract
should be executed is the Legislature’s. He asked what | egal
channel s soneone could pursue to challenge the Legislature. The
Legi slature has to now prepare and pass the Act. The Act has to
be signed by the governor to becone |aw before the governor can
execute the contract.

SENATOR GUESS agreed and said there is nothing in 435 that
addresses the finding. The Legislature could give the governor

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 20, 2006



authority to execute the contract wthout even seeing the
contract.

CHAI R SEEKINS said the Legislature has to pass a law in order to
accept the contract but they don't have any affirmative
responsibility under any law to meke sure that the contract
neets the terns of the SCGDA.

MR. OSTROVSKY  countered that there were constitutional
provi sions that sonebody could challenge to assert that the
contract doesn’'t maxim ze the state’'s interest, for exanple.

9:09: 55 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS said the only basis would be a constitutional
basi s.

MR OSTROVSKY said that is correct.

SENATOR THERRI AULT pointed out that there is reportedly a whole
package of changes to the SG)A comng down from the
adm nistration and they are not sure that the Legislature would
pass them or what the standard would be for review He asked
whether there was a way to stop the process to make sure the
court could look at the constitutional issue as well as the best
interest finding.

CHAIR SEEKINS said as he looks at the original SGDA the
admnistration has an affirmative responsibility to nmake sure
the contract neets all of the requirenments of the Chapter and
that it is in the long-term best interest in the state. Since
amendi ng the SGDA in 1998, the adm nistration no |Ionger has that
responsi bility except in an advisory capacity.

9:14:18 AM

MR. OSTROVSKY said it seens that the statute now is a process
that the Legislature wants the admnistration to present a
contract that address all of the factors of the Act. The effect
is that the Legislature, after looking at the contract, could
propose changes to it.

CHAIR SEEKINS countered there is nothing that says the
Legislature has any bargaining power. |In effect, the I|aw
approves the contract.

MR. PORTER advi sed the way the Act was designed it gives the DOR

the responsibility to negotiate a contract under specific terns
and to report the prelimnary finding to the public. After the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 20, 2006



public comrent period, the Legislature at that time can give the
Departnment the direction to change it. The conmm ssioner would
review the public coments and renegotiate the contract and
present a final findings and determnation along wth the
contract. After that, the Legislature determ nes whether or not
toratify the contract. That is the process, he stated.

9:18:48 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS said the Legislature would have the option to not
ratify the contract.

MR. PORTER agreed. That is a prerogative of the Legislature.

CHAIR SEEKINS said it appears that the Legislature has assuned
the responsibility to ratify the contract but it |l|acks the
affirmative responsibility to nmeet any kind of checklist. That
is what nmakes sone peopl e nervous, he said.

MR. PORTER agr eed.

9: 20: 48 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that there is also no requirenent that
the adm ni stration take action on the coments.

MR. PORTER said the admnistration would do that at its own
peril. The Legislature has the right not to ratify the contract.

SENATOR THERRI AULT commented that the discussion continues
whether or not the Legislature has the constitutional right to
say no to the contract.

MR. PORTER said he did not understand.

MR OSTROVSKY replied t here IS a presunption of
constitutionality but regardless the governor’'s intention is to
follow the statute.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said clearly when the original bill was
introduced it had no | egislative approval.

9:22:58 AM

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS said the transmttal letter on the bill
says, “Any contract negotiated by the adm nistration would be
subject to |legislative review and public hearing. Additionally |
woul d encourage the Legislature to require |legislative approva
of a contract because of the appropriate role of the Legislature
in such a unique and significant decision. Furthernmore if such

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 20, 2006



contract in lieu of taxes was considered a tax, the Legislature
may well be required to approve such action by law ” That
statement nekes it seem |ike there was discussion between the
governor and Legislature at the tine, she said.

MR. OSTROVSKY speculated the letter was due to sone concern
about the authority of the admnistration to set taxes.

CHAIR SEEKINS noted the inportance of allowng the public the
opportunity and the right to challenge the assunptions on which
the contract was based.

MR. PORTER commented that the public has full opportunity to
review all the docunents and to comment during the public
coment peri od.

9:27:35 AM
SENATOR GUESS argued that as the bill is witten now, the public
could coment but could not challenge the findings in court.

MR. PORTER said that is correct and explained the reason for
that is because the Legislature has inserted itself into the
deci si on- maki ng process.

SENATOR GUESS di sagreed. She said if that were the reason then
t he Legi sl ature woul d have the final decision and authority.

9:30: 16 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said if it were just a statute-to-statute
conflict, the court would reconcile the two. They would |ook to
see whether the authorization to execute conflicted wth the
SGDA.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he was conceivably correct if the situation
were that the Legislature authorized a contract that they knew
didn't neet the conditions of the Chapter. He reiterated earlier
statenents regardi ng proposed anmendnents to the SGDA.

CHAIR SEEKINS noted the Legislature could always anmend the
Chapter or send the contract back.

9:34:15 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS said when the Legislature anmended the SGDA in
1998, they “left a w de-open path.” He asked when the docunents
that the conm ssi oner considers becone public.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 20, 2006



MR. OSTROVSKY assuned that would be when the conm ssioner
transmts his final findings to the governor.

CHAIR SEEKINS said there wouldn't be any disagreenment if
subsection (c) stated that the conm ssioner should make the
docunents available to the public when submtting the contract
to the governor.

9:37:42 AM
MR. PORTER understood that would be the process.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he was looking at it froma public standpoint
and wants to make sure there is nothing stuck “in the dark.” He
asked whether the Legislature is required to pay attention to
t he chai n of possession of the contract.

MR. OSTROVSKY said he did not believe there was a requirenent.

9:39: 50 AM

SENATOR HOLLIS FRENCH said he keeps coming back to the roll of the
Legislature in authorizing the contract and some legislators could
vote on the contract wi thout even reading it.

CHAIR SEEKINS expressed concern of the lack of affirmative
responsibility to pay attention to the contract even though
| egi sl atures have an i nmplied responsibility under t he
Constitution. If the Legislature were to ignore their duty to
ensure that the contract neets the best fiscal interest of the
state it would seemthat would be a cause for chall enge.

MR. OSTROVSKY specul ated that there mght be. Nothing precludes
sonmeone from bringing a constitutional challenge, he stated.

9:42:25 AM

SENATOR FRENCH added that the norning’ s discussion illustrates
the inportance of the final finding and determnation as the
gui depost. The right of the public to challenge the final
finding should be a check and balance that ensures that the
Legi sl ature has done its job.

MR. PORTER rem nded the committee that the thorough analysis
woul d occur during the public process.

SENATOR FRENCH expressed concern that the public comrent period
could shrink to 30 days and that the DOR might not nake
avai |l abl e the 15, 000-30,000 pages that the comm ssioner used to
come to his determination. For exanple, if sonebody believes

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 20, 2006



that the finding was issued for political reasons the public
m ght be hanpered in their ability to make their case and to
have access to the nodeling, data, and assunptions that went in
to the two hundred page final determ nation

MR. PORTER responded it is the intent of the DOR and is
supported by statute that it is their responsibility to provide
t he reports and docunent ati ons leading to the final
determ nation

9:45: 50 AM

SENATOR @GQUESS reninded M. Porter that the intent of this
adm nistration mght not be the intent of the future
adm nistration and that the commttee was still wunsure whether

or not the Legislature would be acting under the SGDA this year.
The statute tends to surpass the present, she said. She
supported Senator French’s concerns regarding the public’s
access to the docunents and reiterated Senator Therriault’s
suggestion that there is no recourse for the public to challenge
that the contract goes against the law. There is nothing to help
the public conpel the Legislature to follow the | aw

MR. OSTROVSKY comented it was his belief that the court could
conpel the Legislature to follow the law but the court could
conpel the DOR to follow the law. The Legislature has the power
to anend the SGA. The check doesn’t check the Legislature’s
power but it mght check the DOR s power.

SENATOR GUESS asked would it then conpel the contract to conply
with the | aw

MR. PORTER said that was an interesting scenario.

I f you assune that oil certainty needs to be a part of
the contract, the way it is currently witten, if you
allow the public to appeal to the court at the
findings level before it gets to the Legislature, the
Legi slature never gets to make that deci si on
because... let’s assune that you have to anend the
SGDA and you don’t anmend it until that final tine. You
end up in the situation where the public can always
prevent the DOR from presenting the contract to the
Legislature for review and analysis because they
didn't follow every elenment of the current law if you
know t he Act needs to be anended.

9:50: 29 AM
SENATOR GQUESS asked M. Porter the intent of the bill:

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- April 20, 2006



Is the intent of this bill a “timng intent,” which |
actually agree with, let’'s make all the legal actions
at one time. O is the intent a timng and a “we al so
want to take off the table any challenges that the
contract doesn’t conply with the law.” Wiich this bill
does because it says you only can |ook at the
constitutionality of the issue.

MR. PORTER replied the difficulty is that the Legislature sits
as the lawmker. It can ratify the contract and ignore or change
the laws. The final finding neans that the agency took an action
that affects the economc interest of sonebody. The final report
that the commssioner is nmaking is a recomendation to the
governor and the Legislature, so there is no final finding upon
whi ch an econom c issue has been changed until the Legislature
makes a deci sion, he stated.

SENATOR GUESS countered the final finding is that the proposed
contract and any anendnents neet the requirenents and the
purpose of this Chapter. It’s not a recommendati on.

CHAIR SEEKINS interrupted to say that it was a precedent prior
to the execution of the contract by the conm ssioner but now it
has been relegated to a recommendation by a consultant to the
Legi sl ature. The Legislature, by inserting itself, now stands to
have its decision to be challenged. And the challenge can only
be made as to the constitutional fiscal interest to the state.

SENATOR GUESS asked the reason for the Stranded Gas Act.

9:54:40 AM
MR. PORTER responded the SGDA gave the DOR direction on how to
negoti ate the contract.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the issue is the sticking point. He
suggested there should be a way of renoving the sticking point
wi t hout extinguishing the entire process.

CHAI R SEEKINS said the way the Act was anended was clunsy but
that he had sone suggestions. He asked M. Ostrovsky whether
sonebody could bring a | awsuit before the contract was signed.

MR. OSTROVSKY sai d yes.
MR. PORTER added normally after the ratification, the governor

has up to 60 days. The DOR would expect that the agency would
notify the public that they have 30 days with which to file an

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- April 20, 2006



appeal with the court and usually they would stay the action
until that 30 days is over.

9:59: 09 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS said the bill has to be passed by both |egislative
bodi es and signed by the governor so there is a period of tine
for public notification.

SENATOR FRENCH qui pped the SGDA is | ooking better and better the
way it stands. The process is orderly. The problemis that the
adm nistration has created a contract that conflicts with the
Stranded Gas Act.

10: 02: 43 AM

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGGE NS speculated that likely the party that
would file a lawsuit would be sone special interest group based
on econom c factor.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Porter to explain the role of the
Department of Natural Resources in the process.

MR. PORTER directed the conmmttee to AS 43.82.430(2) and said
the conmm ssioners of both departnents are relegated to work
together to determne if any anendnents are necessary based on
publ i c conments.

10: 06: 00 AM at ease 10:16: 30 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS called the commttee back to order. He summari zed
the commttee’s main concern was that when the Legislature
amended the SGDA in 1998 they elimnated the public’'s right to
chal l enge whether or not the contract and proposed anendnents
met the requirements of the Chapter because the Legislature can
change t hat.

MR. OSTROVSKY interjected the public would always be able to
challenge a contract whether or not the contract neets the
statute as it’s ultimately enact ed.

CHAIR SEEKINS said on the other hand the court would side wth
t he Legi sl ature.

MR. OSTROVSKY replied, “Likely, yes.”
10: 19: 48 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS asserted the intent of the committee is to renove
the point for soneone to “high-center” the process. Conceptually

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 20, 2006



the commttee wants to allow for sonmeone to challenge the
contract after the contract is executed. He asked how the
committee should do that.

SENATOR FRENCH di stributed his proposed anendnment [entitled 24-
LS1842\F. 1] to commttee nenbers and explained the idea behind
it. The idea is sinply to postpone the challenge until you have
sonething to challenge, which is a ratified contract.

10: 23: 26 AM

MR. PORTER responded the difficulty with the proposed anmendnent
was that it “nesses up the process and the relationship between
the Legislature and the judiciary.” He said it would allow the
judiciary to junp in front of the Legislature after the
Legi sl ature had made a deci si on.

MR. OSTROVSKY added that there have been discussions regarding
anendnents of the Stranded Gas Devel opment Act. The proposed
amendnent woul d prevent the governor from advancing a contract
because it would be inconsistent with the Act as witten.

10: 25: 30 AM
SENATOR FRENCH interrupted to ask him for an explanation of how
the anendnent would I|imt the ability of the governor to

transnmt a contract.

MR. OSTROVSKY said it depends on where the anendnents to the
SGDA end up.

SENATOR FRENCH referred to AS 43.82.430 and said once the
contract is anended and signed, the contractors mnust agree to
the changes and at the sane time the comm ssioner would be
making his final finding. That all happens before that big 200-
page docunent cones out, he said. Everything has to have been
done before that tinme. The Chairman is concerned about stopping
the review of that contract while the court sorts through the
30, 000 pages of background docunents.

10: 28: 40 AM

MR. OSTROVSKY noted there was another issue of whether the
comm ssioner’s finding would be superseded by the |egislative
review that occurs after it.

SENATOR THERRI AULT countered that the court wuld have to
consider the law earlier than the date of the appeal.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 20, 2006



CHAIR SEEKINS said the problem was in the timng. The
Legi slature by authorizing the signature has in effect approved
the contract regardl ess of what the Act says.

10: 34: 18 AM

LORI BACKES, Fairbanks, testified and objected to the anendnent
of the SCGDA, which she clained would effectively renove the
right of the people to seek judicial review The unnecessary
delay in the contract is the governor’s insistence that the
Legislature pass a revision of oil taxes before he releases the
contract. She stated that the governor broke the law in
negoti ating the contract.

10: 36: 46 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked Ms. Backes whether she heard Senator
French’s proposed anendnent that would delay the judicial review
to the end of the process.

M5. BACKES responded that she had the anendnent and did not have
an objection except that it has becone a reverse process. She
clainmed that noving it to the end of the process would be noot
since the contract would already be enacted and the statute
woul d have been anended to match the contract.

10: 40: 02 AM

Bl LL WALKER, General Counsel, Alaska Gasline Port Authority,
testified in opposition to the bill and said he found SB 316 to
be appalling. It allows the conm ssioner to conpile whatever
best interest finding that he sees fit and it does not have to
match the law. That is reverse of the way the law is designed,
he stated. He challenged the governor to release his anendnents
to the Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act immediately so they can be
debated now. He expressed appreciate to the commttee for their
current debate and encouraged the commttee to vote against the
bill.

10: 43: 54 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS recessed the neeting until 9:30 AM tonorrow, April
21, 2006.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- April 20, 2006



